
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Town of Mineral Springs  

Mineral Springs Town Hall 

3506 Potter Road S ~ Mineral Springs 

Mineral Springs Town Council 

Regular Meeting  

February 9, 2023 ~ 7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Opening  
 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of Allegiance will 
be recited.    

 
2. Public Comments 

 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest to them 
during this ten-minute period.  
 

3. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

A. Approval of the January 12, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. Acceptance of the December 2022 Union County Tax Report  
C. Acceptance of the December 2022 Finance Report 

 
4. Travel Information Station FCC License and Queen’s Cup Agreement – Action Item 

 

The council will consider applying for an FCC License for a Travel Information Station and executing 
a Memorandum of Understanding with the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation. 
 

5. Consideration of Appointing/Reappointing Board of Adjustment and Planning Board 
Members – Action Item  

 

The council will consider appointing a board of adjustment member and reappointing board of 
adjustment and planning board members.  
 

6. Consideration of Conducting a Work Session for Capital Funding, Meeting Protocols, 
and Town Hall/Grounds Maintenance Needs – Action Item 
 

The council will consider calling for a work session to discuss capital funding needs, meeting 
protocols, and town hall/grounds maintenance needs.  

 
7. Discussion and Possible Consideration of the 2023 Annual Festival – Action Item     

 The council will discuss and consider the 2023 Annual Festival. 
 

8. Selection of a Movie for the Outdoor Movie Night at Town Hall – Action Item 
 

The council will consider selecting a movie for the outdoor movie night at the Mineral Springs Town 
Hall on Friday, June 30, 2023,   
 

9. Consideration of the Deer Urban Archery Season Renewal – Action Item 
 

The council will consider approving the Deer Urban Archery Season for the 2023-24 season, which 
runs from January 13, 2024 through February 18, 2024. 
 

10. Staff Updates   

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town.  
  
11. Other Business 

 
12. Adjournment – Action Item 



 

January 12, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 24 Page | 46 

 

Draft Minutes of the  
Mineral Springs Town Council  

Regular Meeting  
January 12, 2023 – 7:30 p.m.  

 
The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Regular Session at the Mineral 
Springs Town Hall located at 3506 Potter Road S, Mineral Springs, North Carolina, at 7:30 p.m. on 
Thursday, January 12, 2023. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Councilwoman Valerie Coffey, Councilwoman Lundeen 

Cureton, Councilwoman Bettylyn Krafft, and Councilman Jim Muller.  
 
Absent: Councilwoman Janet Critz and Mayor Pro Tem Jerry Countryman.   
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks, Attorney Bobby Griffin, and 

Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Maurice Norman. 
 
Visitors: None.  
 
1. Opening 
 

With a quorum present at 7:30 p.m. on January 12, 2023, Mayor Becker called the meeting to order.  

 Councilwoman Cureton delivered the invocation. 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Public Comments 
 

 There were no public comments.  

3. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

Ms. Brooks pointed out a couple of corrections for the December 8th minutes.  Item 3 on page 40: 
Countryman and Krafft should not be there for the “Ayes”.  Item 7 on page 45: Countryman and 
Cureton should not be there for the “Ayes”.  

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to approve the consent agenda containing the December 8, 2022 
Regular Meeting Minutes (as corrected), the November 2022 Union County Tax Report, and the 
November 2022 Finance Report and Councilwoman Krafft seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

4. Selection of Council Members to Serve as the Delegate and Alternate to Centralina Council 
of Governments – Action Item  

Mayor Becker explained Councilwoman Critz was the Centralina Council of Governments (COG) 
delegate, but she had informed him that she did not wish to be reappointed.  Mayor Becker asked 
Town Clerk Vicky Brooks if she had any information from COG (i.e., is it still available online, or is it 
in person, is it every other month, is there a meeting schedule).  Mayor Becker asked if a council 
member wanted to take it on. 

Ms. Brooks commented she did not have any information, because it would be delegate and 
alternate that would get the agendas. 

Councilwoman Coffey clarified [as the alternate] that she had not received anything, and that 
Councilwoman Critz received all the information.  

Mayor Becker commented that he thought everybody in attendance knew what the COG delegate 
did; the meetings have been online and in person, but he thought COG elected to continue that. 



 

January 12, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 24 Page | 47 

 

Councilwoman Coffey explained the online starts promptly at 5:00 p.m., but you know well in 
advance if you need to make some changes in your schedule to be in attendance.  Councilwoman 
Coffey did not know when the meetings were, because it had been a long time since she had been 
to one.  

Mayor Becker believed the meetings were bi-monthly. 

Councilwoman Krafft stated she would volunteer, but at this point in her life she chose not to take 
anything else on because her hands were way full. 

Councilwoman Coffey suggested Councilman Muller. 

Councilman Muller agreed to be the delegate. 

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to nominate Councilman Muller as our delegate to Centralina 
Council of Governments and Councilwoman Krafft seconded.  This motion passed unanimously.  
Ayes: Coffey, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

Councilwoman Krafft agreed to be the alternate delegate.  

Councilwoman Coffey motioned for Councilwoman Krafft to be the alternate for Centralina Council 
of Governments and Councilman Muller seconded.  This motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, 
Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

5. Selection of 10 of the 16 NCLM Proposed Goals and Consideration of Appointing a NCLM 
Voting Delegate – Action Item 

 Mayor Becker explained the league’s board came up with some potential legislative goals they are 
going to focus on with their activities at the General Assembly in the current session.  The league 
asked each municipality to narrow it down to 10 and then appoint a voting delegate to vote for the 
council’s 10 choices. 

 Each council member reviewed the 16 goals and selected the 10 goals they felt were important and 
voted as shown below. 

(1) Affordable Housing – 4  votes.   

(2) Vacant and Abandoned Properties – 5 votes.   

(3) Permanent Funding for Local Infrastructure – 5 votes.   

(4) Broadband Access – 3 votes.   

(5) Deadlines for Completion – Extend Federal Completion Deadlines – 3 votes.   

(6) State Transportation Funding Streams – 5 votes.   

(7) Multimodal Transportation Solutions – 2 votes.   

(8) Increase State Funding for Public Transportation – 4 votes.  

(9) Local Economic Development – 2 votes.   

(10) Regionalization of Water and Sewer – 4 votes.   

(11) Local Law Enforcement Recruitment, etc. – 1 vote.   

(12) Assistance to the Finance Offices to Enhance the Audit Process – 2 votes.  



 

January 12, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 24 Page | 48 

 

(13)  Revise State Contracting Laws to Help Offset Inflation – 2 votes.   

(14) Update Annexation Petition Thresholds for Voluntary Annexations – 1 vote.   

(15) Help Municipal Water Systems Recoup Pollution Clean-up – 3 votes.   

(16) Provide Local Revenue Options in Addition to just Property Tax – 4 votes.  

Ms. Brooks reported there were three fives, four fours, and three threes.  The top 10 were 1, 2, 3, 
4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 15, and 16. 

Mayor Becker asked for a volunteer. 

Councilman Muller volunteered to do it again this year.  

Councilwoman Krafft motioned to appoint Councilman Muller to be the appointed delegate for this 
purpose and to direct him to vote the priorities that Vicky read out and Councilwoman Cureton 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes:  Coffey, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays:  
None.  

6. Consideration of Conducting a Work Session for Capital Funding and Meeting Protocols – 
Action Item 

 Mayor Becker explained he had briefly discussed this with Councilwoman Coffey.  The council will 
be looking to schedule a work session to begin looking at three things as Ms. Brooks had detailed; 
meeting protocol, capital improvement, and building and grounds needs.  It has been almost fifteen 
years in this building, so the building and grounds needs will be on-going maintenance, some of it 
more major than others. 

Mayor Becker thought it would be hard to schedule the work session without Councilman 
Countryman and Councilwoman Critz and he suggested that the council make a motion to postpone 
it until next month.  Hopefully six council members will be present.   

Mayor Becker suggested the council begin to think about those three areas and have some specifics 
to mention as they go into that scheduled work session, so the staff knows what to prepare for.  

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to table agenda item six until next month, assign councilmembers 
to research meeting protocols, and contact the absent councilmembers, and Councilman Muller 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes:  Coffey, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays:  
None.  

7.  2022 Zoning and Planning Report 

 Ms. Brooks explained the 2022 Zoning and Planning Report showed what type of permits were 
issued, what the planning board had done, and what the board of adjustment had done (i.e. special 
use permits, appeals) for last year. 

Mayor Becker commented that it was a great summary and he thought it was nice to see the 
relatively small number of new homes, which were mostly in the McNeely Road area where there 
were vacant lots.  

8. Consideration of an Outdoor Movie Night at Town Hall – Action Item 

 Mayor Becker asked the council if they were interested in doing the outdoor movie night again this 
year and if so they would need to select their three preferred dates. 

After some discussion, Mayor Becker stated the consensus of the council was:  

(1) September 29th;  (2) June 30th; and  (3) April 28th.  



 

January 12, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 24 Page | 49 

 

Councilman Muller motioned to submit the chosen dates to Union County as read and 
Councilwoman Coffey seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes:  Coffey, Cureton, Krafft, 
and Muller.  Nays:  None.  

9. Staff Updates 

 Mayor Becker mentioned the audit had been approved by the LGC and the town paid Kendra [town 
auditor Kendra Gangal].  Mayor Becker will see if Kendra can come next month to do a presentation. 

10. Other Business  

 Councilwoman Krafft asked Ms. Brooks if she was trying to get in touch with the property owners 
for the fall festival and if it would still be in September.  

Ms. Brooks responded the fall festival needs to be an agenda item for discussion; it can be put on 
the agenda for next month.  If the fall festival takes place it would be on the first Saturday after Labor 
Day in September.   

11. Adjournment – Action Item 

 At 8:06 p.m. Councilwoman Coffey motioned to adjourn the meeting and Councilman Muller 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays: 
None.   

 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, February 9, 2023 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mineral Springs 
Town Hall.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

 

             
  Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  Frederick Becker III, Mayor   



msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Agenda Item

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
# 3B

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
2/9/2023

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Line



























































MEMO 
 
To:  Mineral Springs Town Council 

From:  Rick Becker 

Date:  January 30, 2023 

Subject: Travel Information Station FCC License and Queen’s Cup Agreement 

 

Last month, Bill Price of the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation, Inc. (operator of the Queen’s Cup 
Steeplechase event) along with Bill Baker of Information Station Specialists (ISS) contacted me 
about a proposal to address some of the traffic problems resulting from the annual Queen’s Cup. 
 
As you know, the event brings anywhere from 12,000 to 15,000 people to Mineral Springs, most of 
them in private cars, and there are always some traffic problems. During the 2022 races the problems 
were particularly bad for a variety of reasons including one of the largest attendance figures ever and 
a “glitch” in Google and Apple Maps GPS applications which erroneously sent nearly ALL race 
traffic to the Gate 3 entrance on Potter Road (which was the wrong entrance for a majority of the race 
patrons and which jammed Potter Road all day). 
 
The Queen’s Cup organization each year goes to great lengths to facilitate traffic movement on race 
day, including the use of four gates to the venue to accommodate patrons that park in different parts 
of the race property, the use of Union County Sheriff’s Office deputies for traffic control and public 
safety, the hiring of a professional parking company experienced in operating large outdoor events 
such as the Masters’ Golf Tournament, and detailed entry and parking instructions on tickets and 
informational materials. What Mr. Price is hoping to accomplish is even better organization and 
management of traffic flow through real-time information on race day that attendees (and even 
non-attendees traveling in the area) can receive on a designated frequency on their car radios and 
which can be updated as necessary to reflect developing traffic conditions. This system is known as a 
Travelers’ Information Station (TIS) and is the same thing that you may have seen along interstate 
highways or other travel routes, for example, with electronic signboards stating “Tune to 1610 AM 
for information” about construction, detours, etc. I’ve attached a screenshot of part of ISS’s home 
page showing such a sign. The Queen’s Cup organization could also provide this TIS radio frequency 
to race patrons in their ticket information packages. 
 
Mr. Baker summarized the proposal as follows: “What is proposed is a temporary radio broadcast 
service that can be received on car radios for 3+ miles around the Queens Cup event, which will 
broadcast travel, traffic, parking and event information.  It can also broadcast emergency/safety 
information in the event of weather or other safety of life issues, since it can be operated live as well 
as with recorded programming. The Queen’s Cup communications staff will operate the system on 
behalf of the city and under the city’s license, under FCC Part 90.242 ‘Travelers Information Radio 
Stations.’  The broadcasts are voice/noncommercial.  The FCC application will be for a regular, 
multi-year license for the city, as well as a temporary license for this year’s event if the regular 
license has not yet [been] granted.  Because the Queen’s Cup personnel would be operating the 
system, a memorandum of understanding can be provided stating the operation will be according to 
the FCC rules referenced herein.” 
 

Agenda Item 

#___ 
2/9/2023 



The town would need to do two things in order to facilitate the Queen’s Cup’s implementation of this 
TIS service: 1) obtain a license from the Federal Communication Commission (FCC) specifically 
authorizing the operation of TIS systems under FCC Part 90.242, and 2) enter into a simple 
agreement with the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation, Inc. allowing the latter to operate a TIS 
according to FCC rules and holding the town harmless in the case of any issues arising from the 
Foundation’s operation of the TIS. 
 
The FCC only issues TIS licenses to federal, state, and local government entities. The one-time cost 
of the license is $450.00, and, although the town would hold the license, to facilitate decision-making 
by the town council Mr. Price has offered to pay this licensing fee. The TIS itself is operated with 
radio transmission equipment either purchased or rented by the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation 
and the town would incur no costs related to the implementation or operation of the TIS. 
 
Action requested: 
 
1) Adopt a motion authorizing the mayor to complete the FCC Part 90.242 application process 
through Information Station Specialists based on the attached application form 
 
2) Adopt the attached Memorandum of Understanding authorizing the Charlotte Steeplechase 
Foundation, Inc. to operate a Travelers’ Information Station under the town’s FCC Part 90.242 
license 



1/25/23, 3:25 PM Information Station Specialists website

https://theradiosource.com/default.htm

In the News

 
The Top 10 TIS Improvements for 2022

From tape players and crystals to LANs, USBs
and streams, Information Radio Stations have
grown up with technology.  Learn the top
upgrades station operators make today.   

"Get Out Now!"

 

Information Radio Stations
These licensed, 10-watt radio stations are for use by government agencies in emergencies, for visitor
information and travel-related services. Noncommercial voice message content. Packages can include
wrap-around services: licensing, installation, training and message recording.

 

RadioSAFE Wide Area Emergency Radio Broadcast Systems
RadioSAFE Systems provide enhanced signal coverage that can be critical in public emergencies. The
Systems utilize the HPR.0990 High Efficiency Antenna from a fixed location, and with special authority
from the FCC, can blanket more square miles than conventional Information Stations.

                                                             

ABOUT US CONTACT US HOME PRODUCTS SERVICES RESOURCES SITE SEARCH PARTNER PORTAL

 

https://theradiosource.com/articles/news-2022-oct.htm
https://theradiosource.com/products/info-radio-systems.htm
https://theradiosource.com/products/radiosafe.htm
https://theradiosource.com/default.htm
https://theradiosource.com/forms/email-form.htm
https://theradiosource.com/default.htm
https://theradiosource.com/products/default.htm
https://theradiosource.com/partners/default.htm


Information Station Specialists, Inc. 

PO Box 51, Zeeland, MI 49464-0051- 616.772.2300 - Fax 616.772.2966 - iss@theRADIOsource.com - www.theRADIOsource.com

FCC License Questionnaire - Fixed Station

C     APPLICANT IDENTIFICATION 
  

           Governmental Entities Only

Address 

City State Zip

Federal ID Number (9 digit TIN/FEIN)

Position (e.g., City Manager)

Phone Email

PasswordFCC Registration Number (10 digit)

D     FCC REGISTRATION NUMBER AND PASSWORD 
  

                      Registered Entities Only *

If already registered, be sure to fill out the "FCC Registration Number and Password," Section D, below.

Yes No

B     ALREADY REGISTERED  
  

           I am already registered with the FCC. 

A     TODAY'S DATE 

Entity/Agency Name 

Date

(*) If you have a FCC registration number (FRN) account but do not wish to share the account password, indicate here if we 

should create a separate FCC registration number (FRN)  / password for this service that you can integrate into your 

present registration at a time of your choosing.  We will provide the new FRN and password along with the application 

number when the application is filed.        Create separate registration.

This form initiates FCC licensing services from Information Station Specialists. 
  

To complete manually, handwrite or type your responses, print, then fax the form to Bill Baker at 616.772.2966 or mail it 

via USPS to the address on the bottom of this page. To complete the form online, open it in Adobe Acrobat, key your 

responses and click the "Submit by Email" button.  (Note: Although forms completed online cannot be saved digitally in their completed 

state unless you have Adobe Acrobat Pro software, they can be emailed back to Information Station Specialists intact by clicking the "Submit by 

Email." Clicking the "Submit by Email" button offers you a print.)

Submit by Email



Information Station Specialists, Inc. 

PO Box 51, Zeeland, MI 49464-0051- 616.772.2300 - Fax 616.772.2966 - iss@theRADIOsource.com - www.theRADIOsource.com

E     ACTIVITY 
  

           Acquire a New License 
                 

                 Check here if this application is for a new license. 

  

        Modify an Existing License                 
                   

                Check here if this application is to modify or update an existing license.

G    CONTROL LOCATION 
  

        Station Control Location

Callsign of Existing License

Phone Number

Street Address

StateCountyCity 

Page 2 of 4

Title

Name 

F    GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL WHO WILL AUTHORIZE THE FCC APPLICATION *

*May be a medical response agency official with a government authorization letter.



Information Station Specialists, Inc. 

PO Box 51, Zeeland, MI 49464-0051- 616.772.2300 - Fax 616.772.2966 - iss@theRADIOsource.com - www.theRADIOsource.com

H    ANTENNA LOCATION 1

Page 3 of 4

 Information Station Specialists will work with you to determine the appropriate frequency for each antenna location.

Frequency (if known)

Antenna Support Type (pole, building or something else?)

Total Antenna Height

Height of Antenna Support

Ground Elevation above Sea Level (in meters) -- optional

CountyCity/State 

Street Address or Detailed Location Description

Latitude/Longitude -- optional

IMPORTANT: For each antenna location, provide lattitude/longitude, if you know it, and the street address. If the location 

has no street address, provide a detailed description of the proposed location. 

Name Used to Identify this Location

I    Statement of Understanding

I understand that Information Station Specialists is not responsible for the approval or disapproval of this license 

application by the Federal Communications Commission. If granted, operation is subject to changes in primary 

services on the AM broadcast band and must accommodate those changes. I understand that broadcast 

equipment I might install has the potential to receive interference from other sources and might cause 

interference to existing telecommunications and that I am responsible for correcting such situations unless 

caused by component malfunction. I further state that the iinformation provided on this form is accurate, to the 

best of my knowledge, and that I have the approval of the above-named governmental entity to provide the 

information on its behalf and in its name.

Name Date

Title

Contacts 

  

Indicate  representatives of your agency or organization who need to be kept abreast of the progress of this application.

EmailName

EmailName

EmailName

Email



Information Station Specialists, Inc. 

PO Box 51, Zeeland, MI 49464-0051- 616.772.2300 - Fax 616.772.2966 - iss@theRADIOsource.com - www.theRADIOsource.com

Page 4 of 4

J    For Internal Use Only

Attachment Number

STA File Number

STA Callsign

STA Expiration Date

10-Year File Number

This is temporary placeholder content

Submit by Email



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSRANDING 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Queen’s Cup Steeplechase event is held in the Town of Mineral Springs 

(“Town”) on the last Saturday of April each year by the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation, Inc. 

(“Foundation”); and 

 

WHEREAS, thousands of racegoers arrive in private cars over a very short period of time on 

race day, creating traffic blockages and backups in the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Foundation believes that a real-time source of traffic, entry gate, parking, and 

other event information would improve conditions and enhance public safety; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town considers public safety and well-being to be a top priority; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Federal Communication Commission (“FCC”) issues licenses for systems 

known as Travelers’ Information Stations (“TIS”) which permit low-power AM radio stations to 

be set up to allow motor vehicle operators to receive traffic, parking, and other information over 

their car radios within a three- to five-mile radius of a specific location; and 

 

WHEREAS, these FCC licenses are only issued to federal, state, and local government entities 

and have a term of ten years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town and the Foundation agree that it would be beneficial to the public safety 

and well-being for the Foundation to operate such a TIS on race day each year; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Town of Mineral Springs, a North Carolina municipal corporation, 

and the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation, Inc., a 501(c)(3) organization hereby enter into 

this joint agreement to license and operate a Travelers’ Information Station under FCC Part 

90.242 subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. License: The Town shall apply for and maintain a TIS license from the FCC and hereby 

authorizes the Foundation to operate the TIS during the annual Queen’s Cup races. 

 

2. Cost: The Foundation shall be responsible for any and all costs to obtain the license as well as 

to operate the radio system. 

 

3. Operation: Operation of the TIS by the Foundation shall be according to Part 90.242 of the 

FCC rules, which details the service’s technical and operational parameters. 

 

4. Liability: The Town shall bear no financial liability as the license holder and the Foundation 

shall indemnify and hold the Town harmless from any costs or other liabilities associated with 

the license including but not limited to FCC penalties for any violations of the terms of the 

license. 

 



5. Duration: This agreement shall remain in force for ten years from the date of execution or until 

the expiration of the TIS license, whichever period is shorter. 

 

6. Renewability: This agreement and the FCC Part 90.242 TIS license may be renewed upon 

expiration of the FCC license by mutual agreement of the parties. 

 

7. Continuity: The TIS license and this agreement shall remain in force if for any reason a 

Queen’s Cup race event is not conducted in any given year and shall continue uninterrupted for 

future race events. 

 

8. Addresses: Communications related to this agreement shall be directed to the parties at the 

following addresses: 

 

Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation, Inc. 

PO Box 70 

Mineral Springs NC 28108 

 

Town of Mineral Springs 

PO Box 600 

Mineral Springs NC 28108 

 

 

 

 

For the Town of Mineral Springs: 

 

 

        Date     

Frederick Becker III, Mayor 

 

 

 

For the Charlotte Steeplechase Foundation, Inc.: 

 

 

        Date     

William J. Price V, 2nd Vice President 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

         

Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 



 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: January 31, 2023 
Re: Agenda Items 5  Consideration of Appointing/Reappointing Board of Adjustment and 

 Planning Board Members 
 
The town received an application for the vacant alternate board of adjustment seat from Diane 
Countryman.  Currently, the term for that vacant alternate seat is set to expire in April of 2024.  

In April of 2023, the board of adjustment terms for Sharon Carter, Renee Helms, and Jim Muller will 
expire.  Renee Helms and Jim Muller have agreed to serve another term if the town council wishes to 
reappoint them.  I have not reached out to Sharon Carter yet.  Ms. Carter has missed at least four 
consecutive board of adjustment meetings (three regular and one special meeting); the only 
communication from Ms. Carter was for the September 2022 meeting where she emailed saying she 
was at the beach.  The chairman of board requested that this be taken up with the town council per 
the Board of Adjustment Rules of Procedures, which states:  

A. ATTENDANCE 
 

In order for the Board to carry out its duties and responsibilities, it is necessary for all members to 
attend the meetings.  If any regular member misses more than three (3) consecutive regular meetings 
or more than half the regular meetings in a calendar year may lose his or her status as a member of 
the Board and shall be replaced by the Town Council.  Absences due to sickness, death, other 
emergencies of like nature shall be recognized as approved and shall not affect the member’s status 
on the Board; except that in the event of a long illness or other such cause for prolonged absence, the 
member shall be replaced.  

In April of 2022, the board of adjustment term for Marty Connell expired.  Mr. Connell is willing to be 
reappointed if the council wishes to reappoint him.   

In April of 2021, the board of adjustment term for Valerie Coffey expired.  Ms. Coffey is willing to be 
reappointed if the council wishes to reappoint her. 

Fortunately, the Board of Adjustment Rules of Procedures states members are expected to continue 
service until a replacement is appointed by the town council.  

In April of 2023, the planning board terms for Johnny Evans, Renee Helms, Jeff Krafft, and Elizabeth 
Voight will expire.  Johnny Evans, Renee Helms, and Elizabeth Voight are willing to be reappointed if 
the town council wishes to reappoint them.  

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
 



In January of 2022, the planning board terms for Bettylyn Krafft, Michael Rutland, and Richard Helms 
expired.  Richard Helms is willing to be reappointed if the town council wishes to reappoint him.   

If the council chooses to appoint/reappoint board members as described above, the names and terms 
will be as shown below.   

Board of Adjustment    

Marty Connell – April 2025 – Currently serving as Vice Chairman  

Renee Helms – April 2026 

Jim Muller – April 2026 – Currently serving as Chairman 

Valerie Coffey – April 2024 

Michael Rutland – April 2026 – Currently serving as an alternate – Reappointment intention is not 
known at this time 

Alternate – Diane Countryman – April 2026  

Alternate – Vacant – April 2024  

 

Planning Board 

Johnny Evans – April 2026  

Renee Helms – April 2026 

Richard Helms – January 2025 – Currently serving as Vice Chairman  

Bettylyn Krafft – January 2025 – Currently serving as Chairwoman – Reappointment intention is not 
known at this time 

Jeff Krafft – January 2026 – Reappointment intention is not known at this time  

Michael Rutland – April 2025 – Reappointment intention is not known at this time 

Elizabeth Voight – January 2026 







  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DC League of Super Pets 
(2022) 
 
Available Now 
New Release 

 

 

Synopsis  
This animated tale focuses on Krypto the Super-Dog, otherwise 
known as Superman’s pet.  Since he has his own superpowers, 
Krypto enjoys saving the world with the Man of Steel.  However, he 
finds himself challenged when Superman is kidnapped one day, 
and the other human superheroes can’t help.  With the help of 
superpower-infused animals in a shelter, it’s up to Krypto to save 
the world and save his superhuman.  
 

Directors Production Year Rating 
Sam J. Levine, Jared 
Stern 

2022 PG 

Studio 
Warner Bros 

Runtime 
100 minutes 

 

 

Cast 
Vanessa Bayer, Natasha Lyonne, Diego Luna, John Krasinski, 
Marc Maron 

Lightyear 
(2022) 

 

 
 
 
 

Available Now 
New Release 

 

 

Synopsis 
The story of Buzz Lightyear and his adventures to infinity and 
beyond.   
 

Directors Production Year Rating 
Anges MacLane 
 

2022 PG 

Studio 
Disney Pixar 

Runtime 
100 minutes 

 

 
Cast 
Chris Evans, Keke Palmer, Peter Sohn, Taika Waititi, Dale Soules 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Family Camp 
(2022) 

Available Now 
New Release 

 

 

Synopsis 
While attending a family-friendly summer camp, family patriarchs 
Tommy and Eddie become riled by the blatant differences between 
their families while sharing a campsite.  The two men then embark 
on a no-holds-barred competition to earn the camp trophy at the 
expense of their families’ happiness.   
 

Directors Production Year Rating 
Brian Cates 
 

2022 PG 

Studio 
Lions Gate Films, Inc. 

Runtime 
111 minutes 

 

Cast 
Tommy Woodard, Eddie James, Leigh-Allyn Baker, Gigi Orsillo, 
Cece Kelly 

American Underdog: The Kurt 
Warner Story  
(2021) 

Available Now 
 

 

Synopsis 
Football hero Kurt Warner started as an undrafted NFL player and 
later became a two-time Most Valuable Player awardee who led his 
time to win the Super Bowl.  Before his career could take off, Kurt 
struggles with the decision of playing football, ending up as a 
supermarket employee.  But with the support of his wife Brenda and 
guidance from Coach Dick Vermeil, Kurt embarks on a play that 
would soon change his life.  Based on a true story.   
 

Directors Production Year Rating 
Jon Erwin, Andrew 
Erwin 
 

2021 PG 

Studio 
Lions Gate Films, Inc. 

Runtime 
112 minutes 
 

 

Cast 
Zachary Levi, Anna Paquin, Dennis Quaid, Adam Baldwin, 
Ser’Darius Blain  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clifford The Big Red Dog 
(2022) 

Available Now 
New Release 
 

 

Synopsis 
When middle-schooler Emily Elizabeth meets a magical animal 
rescuer who gifts her a little, red puppy, she never anticipates 
waking up to find a giant ten-foot hound in her small New York City 
apartment.  While her single mom is away for business, Emily and 
her fun but impulsive uncle Casey set out on an adventure.  
 

Directors Production Year Rating 
Walt Becker 
 

2022 PG 

Studio 
Paramount Pictures 

Runtime 
97 minutes 
 

 

Cast 
Darby Camp, Jack Whitehall, Izaac Wang, Tony Hale, John 
Cleese  

Underdog to Top Dog 
(2022) 

Available Now 
New Release 
 

 

Synopsis 
Hank is a down-on-his-luck hound who only dreams of one thing: to 
become a samurai.  One day, he finds himself in a town full of cats 
who are being threatened to be wiped out of existence by Ika Chu, 
a ruthless warmongering cat.  Hank turns to Jimbo for help.  As he 
becomes the town’s samurai hero with the help of the feline sensei, 
he must work with the townspeople to finally defeat their menacing 
enemy. 
 

Directors Production Year Rating 
Chris Bailey, Mark 
Koetsier, Rob Minkoff 
 

2022 PG 

Studio 
Paramount Pictures 

Runtime 
97 minutes 
 

 

Cast 
Michael Cera, Ricky Gervais, Samuel L. Jackson, Kylie Kuioka, 
Mel Brooks  




	020923_tca
	011223_tcmd
	230209_County_Tax_Report_agenda_item
	Finance_Report_2212_MSPDF
	230209_Steeplechase_TIS_AGENDA_ITEM
	TIS_Memo_Rev1.pdf (p.1-2)
	Information Station Specialists website.pdf (p.3)
	FCC_License_Questionnaire-Fixed_Station_BLANK.pdf (p.4-7)
	TIS_MOU_Rev1.pdf (p.8-9)

	Diane Countryman BOA app
	Outdoor_Movie_Night_Selection_2023
	Deer Urban Archery Season Renewal Form 2024



